QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

RFQ 0224769

1. Are these services new?  No.
2. Are there incumbents?  Yes.
3. Can you tell us the incumbent’s names?  Drs. J. Reid Meloy and Kris Mohandie.
4. What was the last rate paid?  $200.00 per hour.
5. How many hours of service were performed last contract year?  For the period of June 2007 – June 2008:  Dr. Meloy: 150 hours.  Dr. Mohandie: 123 hours.
6. Are you satisfied with the services performed?  Yes.
7. Can you give us the last contract award or solicitation number?  Dr. J. Reid Meloy: J-FBI-03-045.  Dr. Kris Mohandie: J-FBI-03-046.
8. How are the (200) hours divided-in other words, are there frequent short trips or only a few extended trips?  The 300 hours per year are the hours allocated to the multiple awardees of psychologists/psychiatrists to accomplish the work.  The typical work assignment trip is a three day trip: one day of travel to location; one work day, and one day for return travel. Actual hours traveled and worked are those billed.
9. If the travel portion of the assignment takes 8 hours each way, are those hours reimbursed at the quoted hourly rate or some portion thereof?  Travel hours and work hours are billed at the rates awarded.
10. How many (teaching) programs would you anticipate needing prepared and presented in a year?  Training programs performed by the contractor amount to one session per year, generally.
11. How long is each program expected to be?  One half to one full day.
12. Is time spent preparing a presentation remunerated on an hourly basis, or should it be calculated as part of the total hourly fee?  It is reimbursed at the same hourly rate as any other work under the contract.
13. Could you please provide a further explanation of the definition of “Travel (X trips x $) on page B-2 of the RFQ?  The behavioral assessments done in support of this contract will generally require travel by the contractor to the location of the client or to the Behavioral Analysis Program (BAP) offices at Quantico, Virginia.  Training events which utilize the contractor also require travel to the venue associated with that training.  The contractor’s travel time is compensated at the hourly rate awarded for travel time.  The usual BAP assessment work trip consists of three days: one day travel to location, one work day, and one day for return travel.  The work and travel hours combined comprise the estimated yearly hours.  Travel expenses are reimbursed to the contractor at the federal per diem rates prevailing at the time and place of travel.
14. The travel cost would be for how many days for travel to where?  The travel is usually to the site of the requesting client (e.g., FBI Field Office), and usually entails three days: one travel day to destination, on work day, and one day for return travel.  These trips are determined ad hoc in response to FBI field requests, and therefore, cannot be specifically forecast.
15. Are we to merely estimate this?  There is no need for the offeror to estimate the time engaged in the contract per year.  The FBI has already done that at 300 hours (for both travel and work) per year.  This is an estimate only.  This estimate reflects time expenditure for the pool of contractors retained by the FBI and is not a calculation intended for any one individual contractor.  Since there is a pool from which to draw contractor assistance, there is flexibility in the contractor response to FBI requests for that contractor’s assistance.  If that particular contractor cannot accompany an assessment team on any given trip, the FBI will turn to other contractor’s for that trip.  The contractor in question may then be re-contacted for later trip requests, as determined by FBI field requests and Behavioral Analysis Program management decisions.
16. Is the travel cost for travel expenses only and not professional time charged?  In a typical work trip (3 days), the contractor will bill the FBI for time in travel status and work time.  Travel expenses for the trip will be reimbursed to the contractor in accordance with federal government per diem rates prevailing at the time and place.
17. Does the estimated annual hours forecast of 200 hours apply to each offeror to receive an award under the IDIQ or will all IDIQ awardees subsequently compete for a single pool of 200 hours?  The latter is the case.  The 300 hours is an estimate.
18. We request the government provide either an estimated annual travel expense figure for all the offerors to use in their quotations, or to provide industry with a notional set of travel requirements so that offerors may develop and submit their own technical solutions and associate pricing in response.  The offerors do not need to estimate travel costs.  Travel costs are reimbursed by government per diem rates for the time and place of travel.  The offeror only needs to quote the price per hour they will charge while in travel status.
19. Can you clarify what constitutes a psychologist for the purposes of the contract?   The definition of psychologist is that used by the American Psychological Association and the vast number of states:  a psychologist is one who has a PhD is psychology or PsyD and has passed their state’s licensing exam and boards.
20. Does the FBI intend to retain the requirement of licensure for application to the solicitation?  Yes.
21. Why is licensure necessary?  Licensure helps establish the contractor’s bona fides on the witness stand.  It also establishes the contractor’s bona fides with the Behavioral Analysis Program’s clients.  Licensure of the contractor helps to ensure that the BAP will be advised by someone who as met, on an on-going basis, at least minimum standards in keeping up with best practices and current knowledge in the fields of psychology or psychiatry.  By requiring licensure, we can most expeditiously tap into that community in the private sector that has experience psychologically/psychiatrically assessing people and who can bring fresh perspective to a narrow field of government work.  While there are numerous talented people who have vast experience in that narrow field of government work and who have attained the requisite degrees, the center of gravity of their experience is the narrow field of government work and not in the private sector application of psychology or psychiatry.
22. Will the government consider amending the solicitation to compete this work on a full and open basis, but with the requirement for a 90% or 100% small business utilization level?  No.
23. Please clarify the past performance validation requirement.  How many offerors provide an appraisal of performance of work that is the same as that to be provided to the FBI if FBI employees many not be asked to complete the past performance questionnaire?  As noted in the solicitation package, Section E.5 (b) (4) Past Performance: the Past Performance information sought is for work of similar scope, magnitude and complexity, or similar services, with an emphasis on members of the law enforcement community.  An offeror is not expected to have performed work identical to that which is sought, but to have past experience of a similar type of service to that which is being solicited.
For reference:

B.2 Objectives: “expert support in the area of behavioral personality assessment . . . development of other behavior based strategies;” 

B.4.1: “Perform psychological or psychiatric and behavioral assessments. . . “
B.4.2.4: “Possess a minimum of five (5) years of experience in conducting psychological or psychiatric assessments of individuals, preferably individuals with diverse cultural backgrounds.”

B.4.3.2: “Provide and assist with direct and indirect assessments. . . “

B.4.3.3: “Assist in the selection, preparation, and administration of standardized psychological tests . . . assist in the interpretation of test results.”

B.4.3.7: “Assist as a guest lecturer. . . “

24. Will the government reconsider the requirement for offers to possess a current license to practice psychology or psychiatry?  No.
25. Does the government intend to specify a particular format for proposals, associated length limitations, use of certain fonts on graphics and the like? May offerors develop and submit quotations in accordance with their own proposal formatting style?  The Government’s instructions are located in the solicitation package.  The Government offers this additional note for offerors consideration:  The Government will not look favorably upon an offer that exceeds the requested amount of information or does not directly respond to all requirements identified in the solicitation package.
26. Is the contract a labor hour contract or a time and materials contract?  Labor hour.
27. How does the application process work? If I am selected, but the fees are outside the scope of the FBI’s willingness to pay, will the FBI come back with an accepted status except for negotiation of fees or will the contract application be denied solely because of the fee structure?  In accordance with Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR): 
· Subpart 13, Section 13.003 Policy. (h) In addition to other considerations, contracting officers shall-(3) Consider all quotations or offers that are timely received 

· FAR Section 13.106-2, Evaluation of quotations or offers, (a) (3) all quotations or offers shall be considered for award.  Before making award, the contracting officer must determine that the proposed price is fair and reasonable. (1) Whenever possible, base price reasonableness on competitive quotations or offers.
It is not a matter of the “FBI’s unwillingness to pay,” but rather what price analysis, market research and other factors demonstrate is a fair and reasonable price range for the supplies or services.  While not required under FAR Parts 12 or 13, if an offeror has priced outside of the price established by the government as fair and reasonable, whether high or low, the contracting officer may call the offeror to determine whether or not the offeror made a mistake in their quote.
